REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION HENDERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MEETING DATE:	April 2, 2012
SUBJECT:	CANE CREEK WATER & SEWER DISTRICT MINUTES
PRESENTER:	Terry Wilson
ATTACHMENTS:	YES 1) March 21, 2012 draft minutes

SUMMARY OF REQUEST:

Staff request approval of minutes from a previous meeting of the Cane Creek Water & Sewer District.

BOARD ACTION REQUESTED:

Staff suggests approval of minutes.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

I motion that the Board convene as Cane Creek Water & Sewer District Board.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

I motion that the Board approves the Cane Creek Water & Sewer District minutes of March 21, 2012.

SUGGESTED MOTION: (ONLY NECESSARY IF GOING BACK INTO SESSION AS THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS)

I motion to adjourn as the Cane Creek Water & Sewer District Board and reconvene as the Henderson County Board of Commissioners.



CC: B.O.C. Steve David

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF HENDERSON

CANE CREEK WATER & SEWER DISTRICT WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2012

The Henderson County Board of Commissioners met for a regularly scheduled meeting at 9:00 a.m. in the King Street Meeting Room due to emergent circumstances, Hendersonville.

Those present were: Chairman Tommy Thompson, Vice-Chairman Bill O'Connor, Commissioner Michael Edney, Commissioner Larry Young, Commissioner Charlie Messer, County Manager Steve Wyatt, Interim Assistant County Manager David Whitson, County Attorney Russ Burrell and Clerk to the Board Teresa L. Wilson.

Also present were: Public Information Officer Christy DeStefano, Finance Director J. Carey McLelland, Planning Director Anthony Starr, Associate County Attorney Sarah Zambon, Engineer Marcus Jones, Research/Budget Analyst Amy Brantley, Fire Marshal Rocky Hyder, Social Services Director Liston Smith, and Assessor/Tax Collector Stan Duncan.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Thompson called the meeting to order.

Commissioner Edney made the motion for the Board to convene as Cane Creek Water & Sewer District Board. All voted in favor and the motion carried.

MINUTES

Draft minutes were presented for CCWSD Board review and approval of the following meeting(s): February 15, 2012

Commissioner O'Connor made the motion to approve the minutes of February 15, 2012 as presented. All voted in favor and the motion carried.

ENGINEERING FIRM SELECTION – FLETCHER WAREHOUSE INTERCEPTOR PROJECT

Marcus Jones stated as directed by the Board during the February 15, 2012 meeting, Engineering Staff solicited engineering firms to perform the engineering for the District's Fletcher Warehouse Interceptor Project.

In accordance with NC General Statute 143-64.31 (Procurement of Architectural, Engineering, and Surveying Services), staff developed a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and on February 20, 2012, posted it on the County's website. The responses were received by March 2, 2012 and the following firms submitted Statements of Qualifications (SOQ): Altamont Environmental, Arcadis, David & Floyd, McGill & Associates, William G. Lapsley & Associates and The Wooten Company. The Engineering Department has electronic copies of the SOQs available upon request.

A detailed review of the firms was conducted based on the criteria established within the RFQ. The selection criteria are as follows: Project Team, Project Experience, Design Performance, Construction Administration Performance and Customer Service. The firm recommended by staff as the most qualified responding firm is McGill & Associates. Based on their SOQ and further investigations, they have presented a highly qualified project team with direct experience in engineering the sewer extension project.

APPROVED:

Upon the selection by the Board of Directors, Engineering staff will negotiate a scope of work and fee for the engineering work and bring the resulting agreement back to the Board for approval.

Commissioner Messer made the motion that the Board authorizes the selection of McGill & Associates as the most qualified responding firm to engineer and administer construction for the Fletcher Warehouse Interceptor Project. All voted in favor and the motion carried.

FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE N. C. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (NCDOT) – FLETCHER WAREHOUSE INTERCEPTOR PROJECT

Marcus Jones stated as directed by the Board during the February 15, 2012 meeting, Engineering Staff has received and reviewed the agreement with NCDOT for the District's Fletcher Warehouse Interceptor Project. The agreement is for NCDOT's contribution to the project of \$358,696 in return for the District providing sewer service to the apartments next to Fletcher Elementary School. The apartments septic drain field and in turn it's on-site sewer service will be lost due to NCDOT's Howard Gap Road widening project. The County Attorney has reviewed the agreement as well. The agreement is presented for Board approval.

Commissioner O'Connor made the motion that the Board authorized the County Engineer to execute the agreement with the NC Department of Transportation for payment to the District of \$358,696 for the Fletcher Warehouse Interceptor Project. All voted in favor and the motion carried.

ADJOURN

Commissioner Edney made the motion to adjourn as the Cane Creek Water & Sewer District Board and reconvene as the Henderson County Board of Commissioners. All voted in favor and the motion carried.

Attest:

Teresa L. Wilson, Clerk to the Board

Thomas H. Thompson, Chairman

Executive Summary

The Executive Summary is a summation of this agreement and is not intended to be used as the agreement between the Department (North Carolina Department of Transportation) and the Party (Entity).

Entity: Henderson County

County: Henderson

TIP / WBS Element:

TIP: R-5207B

WBS Element: 45393.2.3

Scope: The Project consists of connecting Parcel 188 (apartments owned by Donna Marie Riley, DB 870, PG 155) and the Fox Glen development to the proposed gravity sewer main as part of the County's Fletcher Warehouse Interceptor project along Howard Gap Road (SR-1006) in Henderson County.

Funding:

Type (Payable or Non-Participation): Payable

State Agreement Type: Secondary Roads

State Funding: \$358,696

Total Cost: \$358,696

Funding for (Project or Construction): Construction

Payment Interval: upon completion

Will the Department reimburse the ROW: True

If "True" appears, the Department will reimburse If "False" appears, the Department will not reimburse Yes

Responsibilities:

Planning: County

Design: County

ROW: Department

Utilities: County

Construction: County

Maintenance: County

Agreement ID # 3072

NORTH CAROLINA

LOCALLY ADMINISTERED PROJECT – STATE SECONDARY ROADS AGREEMENT

DATE: 2/23/2012

HENDERSON COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

AND

TIP #: R-5207B WBS Elements: 45393.2.3

HENDERSON COUNTY

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the last date executed below, by and between the North Carolina Department of Transportation, an agency of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter referred to as the "Department" and Henderson County, hereinafter referred to as the "County".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to make certain improvements within the County under WBS Element 45393.2.3 in Henderson County in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Department; and,

WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority granted to the Department by the North Carolina General Assembly including, but not limited to, the following applicable legislation: General Statutes of North Carolina (NCGS) Section 136-66.1, Section 136-66.3, Section 136-18 (24) and (27), Section 20-169, Section 160A-296 and Section 297, to participate in the planning and construction of the Project approved by the Board of Transportation for the safe and efficient utilization of transportation systems for the public good; and,

WHEREAS, the Department and the County have agreed that the jurisdictional limits of the Parties, as of the date of the awarding of the contract for the construction of the above-mentioned Project, are to be used in determining the duties, responsibilities, rights and legal obligations of the parties hereto for the purposes of this Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement have approved the construction of said Project with cost participation and responsibilities for the Project as hereinafter set out.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, each in consideration of the promises and undertakings of the other as herein provided, do hereby covenant and agree, each with the other, as follows:

SCOPE OF PROJECT

 The Project consists of connecting Parcel 188 (apartments owned by Donna Marie Riley, DB 870, PG 155) and the Fox Glen development to the proposed gravity sewer main as part of the County's Fletcher Warehouse Interceptor project along Howard Gap Road (SR-1006) in Henderson County, (hereinafter the "Project").

PROCUREMENT OF SPECIALIZED SERVICES

- If the County causes the professional engineering services required by this Agreement to be performed by contracting with a private engineering firm and seeks reimbursement for said services under this agreement, it is agreed as follows:
 - A. The County shall ensure that an engineering firm is obtained through an equitable selection process and that prescribed work is properly accomplished in a timely manner, at a just and reasonable cost.
 - B. The County, when procuring architectural, professional and engineering services, must adhere to North Carolina Department of Transportation Policies and Procedures for Major Professional or Specialized Services Contracts. This policy conforms to N.C.G.S. 143-64, Parts 31 and 32.
 - C. The County shall submit all professional services contract proposals to the Department for review and approval prior to execution of the professional services contract by the County. In the event that the professional services contract proposal (engineering) exceeds \$30,000, a pre-negotiation audit must be requested from the Department's External Audit Branch. A pre-negotiation audit of a contract under \$30,000 will be performed by the Department's External Audit Branch if the County requests it.
 - D. Reimbursement for construction administration costs cannot exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the actual construction contract cost. This applies to private engineering firms and/or work performed by the County. If the County elects to procure a private consulting firm to conduct Project administration, the County shall be responsible for submitting the consulting firm's

proposal to the Division Engineer for review and approval. The County, and/or its agent, shall perform Project administration in accordance with all Departmental policies and procedures.

- E. All work shall be prepared and submitted using computer software and applications approved by the Department and compatible with departmental equipment and programs.
- F. Small Professional and Engineering Services Requirements: Any contract entered into with another party to perform work associated with the requirements of this agreement shall contain appropriate provisions regarding the utilization of Small Professional Services Firms (SPSF). This policy conforms with the SPSF Guidelines as approved by the NC Board of Transportation. These provisions are incorporated into this Agreement by reference www.ncdot.org/doh/preconstruct/ps/contracts/sp/2006sp/municipal.html
 - The County shall not advertise nor enter into a contract for services performed as part of this Agreement, unless the Department provides written approval of the advertisement or the contents of the contract.
 - If the County fails to comply with these requirements, the Department will withhold funding until these requirements are met.

PLANNING AND DESIGN

- The County, and/or its consultant, shall prepare the environmental and/or planning document and obtain any environmental permits needed for the Project. All work shall be done in accordance with departmental standards, specifications, policies and procedures.
- 4. The County shall design and prepare the plans and specifications for the Project, in accordance with the Department's standard practices, regulations and guidelines for transportation improvements. The Department shall review and approve Project plans and specifications.

UTILITIES

5. The County, without any cost or liability whatsoever to the Department, shall relocate and adjust all utilities in conflict with the Project. All utility work shall be performed in a manner satisfactory to and in conformance with rules and regulations of the Department prior to the County beginning construction of the Project. The County shall make all necessary adjustments to house or lot

Agreement ID # 3072

connections or services lying within the right of way or construction limits of the Project, whichever is greater, regardless of ownership of the connections or services. Any encroachment agreement and/or permits required for the Project must be obtained from the Division Office. All work shall be performed in accordance with the Department's approved Utility Relocation Policy and standard procedures for utility improvements.

RIGHT OF WAY

6. The Department, shall be responsible for acquiring any needed right of way and/or permanent easements required for said Project. If the Project is not to be constructed within the existing right of way, the Department will be responsible for any additional right of way or easements. Acquisition of right of way shall be accomplished in accordance with applicable policies, guidelines, statutes and the North Carolina Department of Transportation Right of Way Manual.

The Department shall remove from said right of way all obstructions and encroachments of any kind or character (including hazardous and contaminated materials). The Department shall indemnify and save harmless the Department from any and all claims for damages that might arise on account of said right of way acquisition, and construction easements for the construction of said Project.

CONSTRUCTION

- 7. The County shall construct, or cause to be constructed, the Project in accordance with the plans and specifications of said Project as filed with, and approved by, the Department. The County shall enter into and shall administer the construction contract for said Project and the procedures set out herein below shall be followed:
 - A. Prior to advertising the Project for construction bids, the County or its agents, shall submit for approval by the Department, the final construction plans, the total contract proposal, and an estimate of the Project costs to the Division Engineer. Bids received along with proper documentation of Municipal approval shall be submitted to the Division Engineer for review and approval by the Department prior to the contract being awarded by the County. Upon award of the Project, the County shall provide the Division Project Manager copies of the executed contract and sets of plans as requested.

- B. The County shall follow Department regulations, and North Carolina General Statutes regulations pertaining to bid procedures in the award of the contract and purchases. The County shall not enter into any contractual agreement for any phase of the Project without prior written approval from the Department.
- C. The construction engineering and supervision will be furnished by the County. Said work shall be accomplished in accordance with terms set out in Provision #2 of this Agreement.
- D. The Department's Division Engineer shall have the right to inspect, sample, test, and approve or reject any portion of the Project being performed by the County or the County's contractor, to ensure compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. The Department will furnish the County with any forms that may be needed in order to follow standard Departmental practices and procedures in the administration and performance of the contract.
- E. The County shall sample and test all materials in reasonable close conformity with the Department's Guide for Process Control and Acceptance Sampling and Testing. The Division Engineer shall be provided a copy of the testing results.
- F. During construction of the Project, if any changes in the plans are necessary, such changes must be approved by the Division Engineer prior to the work being performed.
- G. All materials incorporated in the Project and workmanship performed by the contractor shall be in reasonable close conformity with the Standards and Specifications of the Department.
- H. Upon completion of the Project, the County shall furnish the Division Engineer with complete sets of "Plan of Record" and/or "As Built" plans as requested.
- I. Prior to the final acceptance and payment by the Department, the Division Engineer shall make a final inspection of the completed work. The Division Engineer will be responsible for final acceptance of the completed work on behalf of the Department.
- J. During construction of the Project, the County shall provide and maintain adequate barricades, signs, signal lights, flagmen, and other warning devices for the protection of traffic in conformation with standards and specifications of the Department and the current edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways published by the Federal Highway Administration.

- K. In the event the Project is not let to contract within six (6) months after receiving final approval of construction plans and proposals from the Department, the County shall be responsible for documenting to the Department justification for project delay and that the Project remains in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, the approved plans and specifications, and current codes.
- L. The County shall complete construction of the Project, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement within one year(s) of execution of this Agreement. If the County has not completed its responsibilities to the satisfaction of the Department, including satisfactory progress of the various phases of the Project, the unexpended balance of funds may be recalled by the Department and assigned to other Projects by the Board of Transportation and the County shall reimburse costs incurred by the Department associated with the Project.

CONSTRUCTION SUBCONTRACTOR GUIDELINES

- Any construction contract entered into with another party to perform work associated with the requirements of this Agreement shall contain appropriate provisions regarding the utilization of Minority Businesses and Women Businesses as required by GS 136-28.4 and the North Carolina Administrative Code.
 - A. The Department will provide the appropriate provisions to be contained in those contracts. Those provisions are available on the Department's website at <u>www.ncdot.org/doh/preconstruct/ps/contracts/sp/2006sp/municipal. html</u>
 - B. No advertisement shall be made nor any contract be entered into for services to be performed as part of this Agreement without prior written approval of the advertisement or contents of the contract by the Department.
 - C. Failure to comply with these requirements will result in funding being withheld until such time as these requirements are met.

FUNDING

 Subject to compliance by the County with the provisions set forth in this Agreement, and the availability of funds, the Department shall participate in the actual Construction costs up to a maximum amount of \$358,696 (estimated costs are \$358,696). Costs which exceed this amount shall be borne by the County. Reimbursement to the County shall be made upon approval of the invoice by the Department's Division Engineer and the Department's Fiscal Section.

- A. The County may bill the Department for actual costs by submitting an itemized invoice and requested documentation to the Department. Reimbursement shall be made upon completion. By submittal of said invoice, the County certifies that it has adhered to all applicable state laws and regulations as set forth in this Agreement.
- B. Force account work is only allowed when there is a finding of cost effectiveness for the work to be performed by some method other than contract awarded by competitive bidding process. Written approval from the Division Engineer is required prior to the use of force account by the County. Said invoices for force account work shall show a summary of labor, labor additives, equipment, materials and other qualifying costs in conformance with the standards for allowable costs set forth in Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87 (www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a087/a087.html). Reimbursement shall be based on actual cost incurred with the exception of equipment owned by the County or its Project partners. Reimbursement rates for equipment owned by the County or its Project partners cannot exceed the Department's rates in effect for the time period in which the work is performed.
- C. In accordance with OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations" (www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/a133/a133.html) dated June 27, 2003, the County shall arrange for an annual independent financial and compliance audit of its fiscal operations. The County shall furnish the Department with a copy of the annual independent audit report within thirty (30) days of completion of the report, but not later than nine (9) months after the County's fiscal year ends.
- D. The County shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and such other evidence as may be appropriate to substantiate costs incurred under this Agreement. Further, the County shall make such materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the contract period, and for five (5) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection and audit by the Department's Fiscal Section.
- E. The County agrees that it shall bear all costs for which it is unable to substantiate actual costs.
- F. Failure on the part of the County to comply with any of these provisions will be grounds for the Department to terminate participation in the costs of the Project.

Agreement ID # 3072

- G. All invoices associated with the Project must be submitted within six months of the completion of the Project to be eligible for reimbursement by the Department.
- H. The Project must progress in a satisfactory manner as determined by the Department. If the Project does not remain active, the Department reserves the right to de-obligate said funding.
- The expenses incurred by the Department for reviews, approvals, inspections and other tasks set forth in this Agreement are an eligible Project cost and charged to allocated Project funding.

TRAFFIC

10. All traffic operating controls and devices shall be established, enforced, and installed in accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes, the latest edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways, the latest edition of the "Policy on Street and Driveway Access to North Carolina Highways", and maintained and controlled by the Department upon completion of the Project.

MAINTENANCE

11. Upon completion of the Project, the sewer system improvements shall be owned and maintained by the County.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

- The County shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1064 (Title 49 CFR, Subtitle A, Part 21). Title VI prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, disability, gender, and age in all programs or activities of any recipient of Federal assistance.
- 13. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the identified parties to the Agreement and is not intended to give any rights, claims, or benefits to third parties or to the public at large.
- 14. It is the policy of the Department not to enter into any agreement with parties that have been debarred by any government agency. By execution of this Agreement, the County certifies, that neither it nor its agents or contractors are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for

debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by a governmental department or agency.

- 15. The County shall certify to the Department compliance with all applicable State laws and regulations and ordinances and shall indemnify the Department against any fines, assessments or other penalties resulting from noncompliance by the County or any entity performing work under contract with the County.
- 16. The County is solely responsible for all agreements, contracts, and work orders entered into or issued by the County for this Project. The Department is not responsible, for any expenses or obligations incurred for the Project except those specifically eligible in the terms of this Agreement. However, at no time shall the Department reimburse the County costs which exceed the total funding for this Project.
- 17. The County will indemnify and hold harmless the Department and the State of North Carolina, their respective officers, directors, principals, employees, agents, successors, and assigns from and against any and all claims for damage and/or liability in connection with the Project activities performed pursuant to this Agreement including construction of the Project. The Department shall not be responsible for any damages claims, which may be initiated by third parties.
- 18. The Department must approve any assignment or transfer of the responsibilities of the County set forth in this Agreement to other parties or entities.
- 19. If the County decides to terminate the Project without the concurrence of the Department, the County shall reimburse the Department one hundred percent (100%) of all costs expended by the Department and associated with the Project. Any notification of termination of this Project shall be in writing to the other party. Reimbursement to the Department shall be made in one lump sum payment within sixty (60) days of billing. A late payment penalty and interest shall be charged on any unpaid balance due in accordance with G.S. 147-86.23 and G.S. 105-241.21.
- 20. In compliance with state policy, the County, and/or its agent, including all contractors, subcontractors, or sub-recipients shall have a Conflict of Interest Policy and adhere to the Department's Women Business Enterprise (WBE) and Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) policy which requires goals to be set and participation to be reported, as more fully described in the Subcontractor Guidelines section of this Agreement.

- 21. All terms and conditions of this Agreement are dependent upon, and subject to, the allocation of funds for the purpose set forth in the Agreement and the Agreement shall automatically terminate if funds cease to be available.
- 22. "By Executive Order 24, issued by Governor Perdue, and N.C. G.S.§ 133-32, it is unlawful for any vendor or contractor (i.e. architect, bidder, contractor, construction manager, design professional, engineer, landlord, offeror, seller, subcontractor, supplier, or vendor), to make gifts or to give favors to any State employee of the Governor's Cabinet Agencies (i.e., Administration, Commerce, Correction, Crime Control and Public Safety, Cultural Resources, Environment and Natural Resources, Health and Human Services, Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, Revenue, Transportation, and the Office of the Governor).

IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the approval of the Project by the Department is subject to the conditions of this Agreement and that no expenditure of funds on the part of the Department will be made until the terms of this Agreement have been complied with on the part of the County. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed, in duplicate, the day and year heretofore set out, on the part of the Department and the Henderson County by authority duly given.

TITLE: ______ TITLE: ______ DATE: _____

"N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization."

This Agreement has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

(SEAL)

(FINANCE OFFICER)

Federal Tax Identification Number

Remittance Address:

Henderson County

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

BY:

(STATE HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATOR)

DATE: ______

PRESENTED TO THE BOARD OF TRANSPORTATION ITEM O: